
AGENDA

Y CABINET

Yn syth Yn dilyn y Pwyllgor Craffu ar
DYDD GWENER, 10 IONAWR 2020, 

SIAMBR Y CYNGOR, CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT

Rhan 1

1. Periodi cadeirydd  

2. Datganiadau o fudd  

3. Blaenraglen Waith 2018-19  (Tudalennau 3 - 4)

4. Ymgynghoriad ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 2020/21  (Tudalennau 5 - 36)

5. Cynllyn Cydraddoldeb Strategol Drafft 2020-2024 - Amcanion 
Cydraddoldeb Strategol  (Tudalennau 37 - 62)

6. Lansiad Panel y Dinasyddion  (Tudalennau 63 - 68)

7. Eitemau brys  
Unrhyw eitemau brys (boed yn gyhoeddus neu wedi’u heithrio) yn 
ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag Offeryn Statudol 2001 Rhif 
2290 (fel y’l diwygiwyd).

S.Phillips
Prif Weithredwr

Canolfan Ddinesig, 
Port Talbot Dydd Llun, 6 Ionawr 2020



Aelodau’r Cabinet: 

Cynghowyr: R.G.Jones, C.Clement-Williams, D.Jones, 
E.V.Latham, A.R.Lockyer, P.A.Rees, 
P.D.Richards, A.Wingrave a/ac L.Jones

Nodiadau: 

 (1) Os nad yw unrhyw aelod o Fwrdd y Cabinet yn gallu bad yn bresennol, gall unrhyw aelod arall o’r 
Cabinet gyflenwi fel aelod etholiadol ar y pwyllgor. Gofynnir i’r aelodau wneud y trefniadau hyn yn 
uniongyrchol ac yna I hysbysu is adran y pwyllgor..  

(2) Ystyrir barn y Pwyllgor Craffu blaenorol wrth wneud penderfyniadau (proses craffu cyn 
penderfynu) 



Cabinet – Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the meeting of Cabinet, 10 January 2020 Officer Responsible: Tammie Davies

2019/20 FORWARD WORK PLAN 
CABINET

Meeting Date Agenda Items
Type
(Decision/
Monitoring Or 
Information)

Rotation
(Topical,
Annual, 
Bi-Annual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly)

Contact 
Officer/ 
Head of 
Service

Budget Monitoring Monitor H.Jenkins

Treasury Management Monitor H.Jenkins

Members Com Fund (if needed) P.Hinder

Valleys Action Plan Progress Report K.Jones

Resubmitted - Comments, 
Compliments and Complaints Annual 
Report

Monitor Annual K.Jones
(JB)

Welsh Language Promotion Strategy 
– Annual Report

Monitor Annual K.Jones
(RH/CF)

UK Steel Charter Decision Topical C.Griffiths

Risk Management Monitor Bi-Annually H.Jones

5 Feb 2020

PSB (Scrutiny) C.Davies

T
udalen3

E
item

 yr A
genda3



Cabinet – Forward Work Programme

Cabinet Forward Work Programme for the meeting of Cabinet, 10 January 2020 Officer Responsible: Tammie Davies

Meeting Date Agenda Items
Type
(Decision/
Monitoring Or 
Information)

Rotation
(Topical,
Annual, 
Bi-Annual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly)

Contact 
Officer/ 
Head of 
Service

Members Com Fund P.Hinder
12 Feb 2020

Meeting Date Agenda Items
Type
(Decision/
Monitoring Or 
Information)

Rotation
(Topical,
Annual, 
Bi-Annual, 
Quarterly, 
Monthly)

Contact 
Officer/ 
Head of 
Service

Members Com Fund P.Hinder
19 Feb 2020

T
udalen4



1

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET 

REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTORS GROUP

10th JANUARY 2020

SECTION A – MATTER FOR DECISION

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

DRAFT BUDGET FOR CONSULTATION 2020/21

1. Purpose of Report

To seek Member approval to consult on the draft budget proposals, 
financial savings, service reductions and income generation 
proposals for 2020/21 and beyond. 

To confirm that consultation will take place to the 4th February 2020 
prior to reviewing responses and setting a balanced budget for 
2020/21 in early March 2020.

2. Executive Summary

Today's report does not seek final decisions from Members on 
priorities or on where financial savings should be made.  The aim of 
this report is to seek approval to go out to consultation and listen to 
the views of our County Borough citizens and stakeholders in 
relation to the issues set out in this report.  Final decisions on setting 
the Council's 2020/21 Budget will be required to be taken in March 
2020, following the end of public consultation and receipt of the 
Welsh Government's Final Local Government Settlement. 

On the 16th December 2019 The Welsh Government (WG) 
published details of the Provisional Local Government Settlement for 
2020/21.  The settlement shows that the Welsh Government is 
providing £4.474bn of funding to Local Government which is a 4.3% 
increase on the adjusted base for 2019/20.  Neath Port Talbot 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda4



2

Council’s share is £226.762m which is 8th best in Wales and shows 
an increase of 4.5%.  

For the first time in years the Welsh Government has published 
details of all specific grants funding for 2020/21. On an All Wales 
basis this shows the total amount available as £982 m. This is a 
£11m increase on the current year having taken account of transfers 
into the settlement.  Details of the specific amounts due for each 
Council have started to be released with further details expected in 
January.  

This report shows that for 2020/21 increases from the Welsh 
Government Grant and Council Tax improve the Council’s funds 
available to run Council Services to £305m but this remains short of 
what is required to meet inflation, pay award, teachers pensions and 
other pressures which total £308.8m.  This results in a funding 
shortfall in 2020/21 of £3.8m.  This report sets out the draft 
proposals for consultation on how to close that gap, including the 
use of £1.65m of general reserves together with draft savings, cuts 
or additional income of £2.148m which are needed to balance the 
budget. 

Members should note that the Welsh Government’s Final Settlement 
is expected to be published on the 25 February 2020. 

Following the recent UK election we expect the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer to issue a Budget Statement early in the New Year 
followed by a further UK Government Spending Review 
announcement due mid-2020 which will inform public spending plans 
for the next parliamentary period.  The outcome of that review will 
allow the Welsh Government to develop plans and hopefully multi-
year funding settlements for 2021 onwards.  In addition to the 
2020/21 gap the following 3 years of the Forward Financial Plan, to 
31st March 2024, shows a projected funding gap of £28m.  A further 
report on options to close this medium term gap will be prepared for 
Members consideration later in 2020.

3. Background 

Neath Port Talbot Council’s net revenue budget 2019/20 amounts to 
£288.168m and together with grants and income from services 
results in a gross budget of £433m which is invested in Council 

Tudalen6



3

services across the County Borough.  The Council also annually 
invests some £50m through its capital programme.  

There is a statutory duty for the Council to set a balanced budget 
each financial year.  Prior to setting the budget the Council has a 
duty to consult stakeholders on changes to the Budget.  One of the 
objectives of this report is to set out the projected funding gap for the 
next 4 years to 2023/24.  In February 2019, when setting the 
Council’s Budget for the current year, it was noted that the Council 
had delivered £90m of savings since 2010 but there remained a 
projected funding gap of £53m over the next 3 years to 31 March 
2023.  

Projected Funding Gap at February 2019

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
 £'000 £'000 £'000
Budget Gap Before 
Directorate Savings 20,843 15,548 16,368

Cumulative Gap 20,843 36,391 52,759
    
FFP Savings -719 -295 -190
    
Budget Gap @ Feb 
2019 20,124 15,253 16,178

Cumulative Gap @ 
Feb 2019 20,124 35,377 51,555

The Welsh Government’s 2020/21 Draft Budget published on 16th 
December 2019 continues to prioritise and provide additional funding 
to the Health Service.  The UK Government has recently announced 
that it will continue to provide additional funding to Health for the 
duration of this parliament. However, until they announce the 
outcome of the Spending Review the impact on other public services 
and Councils will not be known.  As the Welsh Government will 
benefit from the Barnett consequential of such a decision it is highly 
likely that they will also continue to prioritise Health funding at the 
expense of Local Government and other public services.  Hence we 
are likely to continue to face funding challenges over the next few 
years.  

Tudalen7



4

4. Council Priorities 2019 – 2022

The Council’s Corporate Plan for 2019-2022 sets out the Council’s 
strategic objectives and priorities for this administration period. 

The setting of these strategic objectives - the Council’s well-being 
objectives - fulfil the requirement under s3 (2)(a) of the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

The Council’s three well-being objectives are:

Well-being Objective 1 
To improve the well-being of children and young people - “All of our 
children and young people have the best start in life, so they can be 
the best they can be”.

Well-being Objective 2 
To improve the well-being of all adults who live in the county 
borough - “Everyone participates fully in community life – socially 
and economically”.

Well-being Objective 3
To develop the local economy and environment so that the well-
being of people can be improved - “the whole of Neath Port Talbot 
County Borough will be a vibrant and healthy place to live, work and 
enjoy recreational time”.

Supporting each of the above well-being objectives are 
improvement priorities which fulfil different legal requirements set 
out in (s3(1)) of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009.

When setting the well-being objectives and priorities we analysed 
how they contribute to the seven national well-being goals that the 
Welsh Government requires all public bodies in Wales to contribute 
to. 

5. Current Budget 2019/20 

Neath Port Talbot Council approved its 2019/20 budget on the 14th 
February 2019 and finalised council tax setting at the meeting of 27th 
February 2019.  The medium term budget forecast, at that time, 
assumed a 2% reduction in Welsh Government funding for each year 

Tudalen8



5

from 2020/21.  The forecast showed the need to identify savings 
solutions of circa £53m over the next 3 financial years.  

The following table summarises Council Funding and Net Budget for 
2019/20.

Funding 2019/20  Budget  Budget 
 £m %
Revenue Support Grant £168.695 58.54%
National Non Domestic Rates £46.100 16.00%
Discretionary Rates Relief -£0.330 -0.12%
Council Tax £73.703 25.58%
Total Income £288.168 100.00%

Net Budget 2019/20  Budget  Budget
 £m %
Education, Leisure & Lifelong Learning 
(including Schools at £84.24m) £109.091 37.86%

Social Services, Health & Housing £79.681 27.65%
Environment £37.535 13.03%
Finance & Corporate Services £18.076 6.27%
Fire Authority £7.470 2.59%
Capital Financing £19.273 6.69%
Council Tax Support £18.108 6.28%
Other including Contingency £1.189 0.41%
Use of Reserves -£2.255 -0.78%
Budget Requirement £288.168 100.00%

The Council’s budget for 2019/20 is 4.54% or £12.505m above the 
Standard Spending Assessment (SSA) of £275.663m, which is the 
Welsh Government’s assessment of the need to spend

6. Provisional Local Government Settlement 2020/21

The Minister for Housing and Local Government published the 
Welsh Government’s Provisional Local Government Settlement on 
16th December 2019.  

Tudalen9



6

The headlines are that for 2019/20 the Welsh Government will 
provide funding of £4.474bn to run local authority services across 
Wales.  This increase of 4.3% is much appreciated and is the first 
above inflation increase since 2007.  In addition the Welsh 
Government confirmed that they transferred £53m of specific grant 
into the settlement.  The following table summarises the position:

Grants Transferred into Settlement ALL 
Wales NPT 

 £'000 £'000
   

Coastal Risk Management 151 151
NHS funded care 1,900 97
Teachers Pensions 39,112 1,826
Teachers Pay 12,018 561
   

Total 53,181 2,635

As members are aware the £39m for Teachers Pensions and £12m 
for Teachers Pay refer to grants received in relation to 7 months of 
costs incurred this year from September 2019 to March 2020 and 
thus its transfer into the base budget allows for such funds to be 
given to our schools in 2020/21. Members should note that the 
additional full year costs for 2020/21 are included in the general 
provisional settlement.  

The Neath Port Talbot Council share of the total funds available 
amounts to £226.762m.  This is an increase at 4.5% on the current 
year and is the 8th best settlement in Wales.

As part of the Provisional Settlement the Welsh Government 
announced they would make available £982m of specific grants 
and for the first time in many years have provided indicative 
allocations to us of these grants or we can expect such information 
during January 2020. This will much improve our financial planning 
and budget certainty for 2020/21. 

Details of all the Specific Grants as published by the Welsh 
Government are set out in Appendix 4.

Tudalen10



7

Members will note the following points in relation to individual grants: 

 The Welsh Government has increased the grant for Social 
care from £30m to £40m.

 The Welsh Government has agreed to continue to provide 
£10m for Minority Ethnic and Gypsy, Roma and Traveller 
learners.  The majority of this grant goes to the 4 Regional 
Authorities with £169k expected by this Council. 

 The Sustainable Waste Grant has been reduced by £1.8m 
(10%) to £16.4m. It is estimated that NPT’s share will reduce 
by £77k and this has been built into budget pressures.

 In the current year the Welsh Government provided specific 
grant to Fire Authorities to pay for the increased costs of 
Firefighter pensions. However, there is no information on 
whether there is continued funding of such costs in the 
Provisional Settlement or the Grants schedule.  In line with 
the statutory timeline the Mid and West Wales Fire Authority 
have provided details of their Draft Budget and Draft Precept 
Requirements on the basis of both including and excluding 
the £1.8m grant currently received.  We are seeking clarity 
from Welsh Government and the Fire Authority on this matter 
but in the meantime have built in the higher 9.5% increase in 
our budget.

 The £600k made available in the past two years continues to 
be available in 2020/21 to eliminate charging for child burials 
and child cremations.

 Further clarification of the changes and conditions for all 
grants is being sought from the Welsh Government and 
consequential impacts will be evaluated and reported to 
members. 

The settlement continues to include the £244m for Council Tax 
Reductions Scheme (CTRS) support for another year. The 
arrangements for 2021/22 onwards will be determined as part of 
WG’s wider considerations about how to make council tax fairer.  

The Minister also confirmed that she was only providing budget 
information for one year as WG is awaiting the outcome of their 
budget entitlement following the UK Government’s Spending 
Review due later in 2020.

Tudalen11



8

Provisional Capital Settlement 

The Minister also published the Provisional Capital Settlement for 
2020/21. The All Wales Capital Funding Settlement sees an increase 
from £535m to £645m in 2020/21. The main increases relate to Capital 
Childcare Offer (£10.7m increasing to £54m) and Targeted 
Regeneration Investment - South East Wales (increasing from £6m to 
£42m).  It was also confirmed that the total amount of general capital 
allocation for Councils will increase by £5m to £177.837m and that WG 
will continue their investment of £20m in Public Highways 
Refurbishment for another year.  NPT’s share of these funds is 
£8.989m from the general capital allocation and £753k of the 
Highways grant.  The Council’s capital programme will be developed 
over the next few months and presented to Members for approval in 
March 2020.

7. Budget and FFP Gap 2020/21 to 2023/24

Attached at Appendix 3 is a schedule of the inflation, pay awards 
and other assumed factors used to prepare the Draft Budget. 
Given the recent increases in the reported Retail Price and 
Consumer Price Indices together with pay award requests from 
Trade Unions the budget provides for increases of 2% across all 
years.  It also assumes that the Welsh Government funding will 
increase by 1% per annum from 2021/22.  Attached at Appendix 2 
is a list of pressures that have been built into the draft budget 
which total £10.621m. 

These provisions result in a budget funding gap in 2020/21 of 
£2.148m (after using £1.65m from general reserves) and a further 
£28m over the following 3 years.  The following table summarises 
the latest position:

Tudalen12



9

Updated FFP Gap January 2020

 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
     
Budget Gap Before 
Directorate Savings 3,798 8,654 10,656 9,351

Cumulative Gap 3,798 12,452 23,108 32,459
     
FFP Reductions - 
Services & Central -2,148 -346 -190 0

Use of  General 
Reserves -1,650    

Budget Gap @ Jan 
2020 0 8,308 10,466 9,351

Cumulative Gap @ 
Jan 2020 0 8,308 18,774 28,125

Members should note though that work is ongoing to verify whether 
additional budgets are required for the following items. If so they 
will need to be built in to the final budget decisions due in March 
2020:

 Legislation
 Reduction in specific grants affecting service need
 Any changes identified as part of the final Local Government 

Settlement or UK Government announcements.

Schools

In relation to schools, the draft budget for 2020/21 provides for an 
increase in the delegated schools budget of £5.6m to £90m.  This 
represents a 4.4% increase in the budget when one takes account 
of the £1.8m extra funding provided in 2019/20 from grants and 
reserves.  It is appreciated that the Welsh Government has 
transferred the specific grants re Teachers Pensions and Pay into 
the general settlement as this provides additional funding certainty 
for our schools in 2020/21.  The 4.4% increase will provide the full 

Tudalen13



10

year funding of pensions and pay award to be made available to 
our schools next year.  The following table shows the projected 
budget for schools:

 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schools Prior Year Base 84,424 90,050 92,285
2019-20 Pay & Pensions costs 
funded from grants/reserves

1,802   

Teachers Pensions increase 
16.48% to 23.68%  (5 months)

1,468   

Sept 2019 Teachers Pay award 
above 2% (5 months at 0.75%) 

300   

Inflation 1,813 1,985 2,102
Est Pupil Numbers 243 250 250
    
Delegated Budget 90,050 92,285 94,637

The following tables show the estimated funding available from 
Welsh Government and Council Tax compared to the projected 
budget required for 2020/21 resulting in a budget gap of £3.798m 
before use of general reserves.  In order to balance the draft 
budget though there is a need to use a further £1.65m of general 
reserves and make budget cuts/ increase income by £2.148m.

Estimated total funding available 2020/21

 £'000
Net Budget 2019/20 288,168
  
Increase in WG Funding 11,967
Increase in Council Tax proceeds 4,902
  
Draft Funds Available 2020/21 305,037

Tudalen14



11

Estimated budget required 2020/21

 £'000
Net Budget 2019/20 288,168
Pay Awards and inflation 7,594
Pressures 8,183
Transfers into 2020/21 settlement 2,635
Reverse use of General Reserves 19/20 2,255
Draft Budget Required 2020/21 308,835

Draft Budget Gap 2020/21

 £'000
Total Budget Required 2020/21 308,835
Estimated Funds Available 305,037
  
Total Budget Gap 2020/21 3,798
Less Use of General Reserves 2020/21 -1,650
Budget Gap 2020/21 after use of 
Reserves 2,148

8. Draft Savings, Service Reductions and Income Generation 
proposals for Consultation

Attached at Appendix 1 is a schedule of draft savings, service 
cuts/reductions and income generation proposals for public 
consultation.  The service schedule totals £2.148m for 2020/21 with 
a further £536k over the following 2 years. The draft Budget also 
proposes the use of £1.65m from General Reserves. 

The total savings/cuts and use of reserves as shown in Appendix 1 
are summarised as follows:-

Tudalen15



12

Savings/Cuts and increased Income 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
 £'000 £'000 £'000
Education Leisure & Lifelong Learning 326 155 0
Social Services Health & Housing 638 0 0
Environment 117 0 0
Corporate Services 567 191 190
Total Directorate 1,648 346 190
Central Savings 500 0 0
Total 2,148 346 190

Income Generation
Members should note that the Council including schools generated 
over £39m of external income during 2018/19. This was generated 
as follows:

 £'000 Comment

Sales 4,752 School meals, Margam Park, Theatres & 
Social Care meals

Fees & 
Charges

11,177 Arts & Theatres, car parking, Homecare

Contributions 
received

13,164 Residential care service user contributions

Misc. income 6,021 Schools & Environment
Rents 4,016 Property rents, wayleaves, lettings, homeless 
   
Total 39,130  

The report includes proposals to generate additional income of 
£166k in 2020/21 and over £500k over the next 3 years with work 
ongoing to generate more income in subsequent years.

Council Tax

In relation to council tax the 2020/21 Draft Budget assumes a 5% 
increase.  However, it should be noted that the actual Council Tax 
for next year will not be set until the Council’s Budget setting 

Tudalen16



13

meeting in early March 2020.  For information Members should note 
that every 1% increase in council tax generates some £740,000 of 
additional funding (£560k net of Council Tax Support).   

9. Other Considerations

As in previous years members will review and scrutinise the draft 
proposals set out in this report in the relevant Scrutiny Committees 
during January 2020.  Due to the late funding announcement by Welsh 
Government it is proposed that the consultation will commence 
immediately after today’s Cabinet meeting and run until the 4th 
February 2020.

The Final Local Government Settlement announcement is 
expected on 25th February 2020 and a report will be prepared 
setting out all changes.  The Final Budget report due to be 
considered by Cabinet on 5th March 2020 will also take account of 
all matters identified by stakeholders during the consultation period 
together with relevant issues from any UK and Welsh Government 
announcements.  Continuous monitoring and appropriate changes 
will be made re Brexit, other economic, public spending and 
taxation matters.

As previously mentioned, 75% of the Council’s funding comes from 
the Welsh Government.  Local Authorities, the Welsh Local 
Government Association and Trade Unions have over the past year 
set out their case for a reasonable funding settlement for local 
public services and due to the delayed announcement of the 
Provisional Settlement this has been reflected in a much better 
than originally anticipated funding position.  It is critical that both 
the UK and Welsh Governments provide clarity on future public 
spending plans and finances and ensure that proper funding is 
provided to Councils so that they can continue to provide essential 
public services. 

10. Crime and Disorder Impact

The Council has a legal duty under Section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 to carry out all its various functions with “due 
regard to the need to prevent Crime and Disorder in its area”.

Individual proposals are being assessed as to their impact on crime 
and disorder and should any specific impact be identified these will 

Tudalen17



14

be identified against individual proposals and summarised in final 
proposals.

11. Integrated Impact Assessment

The Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to “pay due regard to 
the need to:
• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;
• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
and 
• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and persons who do not share it.”

This report identifies the need to make budget savings, cuts or 
generate extra income of £2.1m in 2020/21 and £28m over the 
following 3 years.  Whilst the net draft Budget for 2020-21 is £305m 
the projected gross investment by the Council next year across the 
County Borough will be circa £420m.  However the proposals for 
savings/cuts will have different impact on services across the whole 
of the County Borough i.e. on citizens, on service users, staff and 
individuals included within the various protected characteristics 
groups set out in the Equality Act 2010 and other legislative 
measures.  Individual Impact Assessments for specific proposals are 
being undertaken and will be made available to Members as part of 
finalising proposals.  

12. Sustainable Development

The Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015 (“the 2015 Act”) 
requires the Council to think about the long-term impact of their 
decisions, to work better with people, communities and each other 
and to prevent persistent problems such as poverty, health 
inequalities and climate change. The 2015 Act imposes a duty on 
all public bodies in Wales to carry out “sustainable development”, 
defined as being, "The process of improving the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales by taking action, in 
accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at 
achieving the wellbeing goals." The action that a public body takes 
in carrying out sustainable development includes setting and 
publishing wellbeing objectives, and taking all reasonable steps in 
exercising its functions to meet those objectives.

Tudalen18



15

This report sets out many service change proposals, which taken 
together, represent a significant change in the Council’s service 
delivery arrangements.  However it should be noted that at this time 
these are draft proposals for consultation and not final decisions, 
those will be made in March 2020.  As part of the sustainable 
development principle the Council has a duty to set a balanced 
budget.  During these austere times this can cause a conflict 
between what the Council wants to provide and what it can afford.  
Stakeholder consultation on these draft proposals will enable the 
Council to take account of responses and other relevant information 
to assist it to finalise its allocation of resources in March 2020.  

13. Workforce Impacts

The workforce will be impacted by the reduction in budget funding 
available to run services.  The Council is sharing this report and 
information with trade unions and staff.  The Council wishes to 
minimise compulsory redundancies and has makes available an 
early retirement/voluntary redundancy scheme.

14. Consultation

Today will commence the formal consultation with the public and all 
stakeholders on the draft budget proposals for savings/income 
generation.

Members will note the consultation will commence immediately 
following Cabinet today until the 4th February 2020 prior to final 
decisions being made in March 2020.  

15. Recommendation

It is recommended that Members authorise the Chief Executive to 
consult the public on the draft budget savings, service changes and 
additional income proposals set out at Appendix 1 of this report.

16. Reason for Proposed Decision

To commence consultation on the 2020/21draft budget.

Tudalen19



16

17. Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation immediately after 
consultation with the Cabinet Scrutiny Committee.  

18. Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation 
for Consultation
Appendix 2 - Revenue Service Pressures 2020 to 2023
Appendix 3 – Inflation and other Factors
Appendix 4 - Specific Grants Schedule 2020/21

19. Background Papers

Welsh Government Provisional Local Government Settlement 
Announcement of 16th December 2019
Budget working files

20. Officer Contact
For further information on this report item, please contact:

Mr. Steven Phillips – Chief Executive 
Tel: 01639 763305    Email: s.phillips@npt.gov.uk 

Mr Hywel Jenkins – Director of Finance & Corporate Services
Tel: 01639 763251    E-mail: h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk 

Mr Aled Evans – Director of Education, Leisure and Lifelong 
Learning – Tel: 01639 763393    Email: a.evans@npt.gov.uk 

Ms Nicola Pearce – Director of Environment and Regeneration
Tel: 01639 686668    Email: n.pearce@npt.gov.uk 

Mr Andrew Jarrett – Director of Social Services, Health and 
Housing - Tel: 01639 763279    Email: a.jarrett@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen20

mailto:s.phillips@npt.gov.uk
mailto:h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk
mailto:a.evans@npt.gov.uk
mailto:n.pearce@npt.gov.uk
mailto:a.jarrett@npt.gov.uk


Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

17

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

ELLL 
707

ES&C Pontardawe Arts 
Centre - Reduce 
Subsidy

Andrew 
Thomas

Operating cost savings and 
increased income from 
establishing a cinema which is 
assumed to open January 2021. 
Capital investment support 
being sought from the Arts 
Council for Wales, the Friends 
of Pontardawe Arts Centre and 
the Council.

176 51% 50 40 0

ELLL 
1001

ES&C Leisure Trust Andrew 
Thomas

Reduction in management fee 
paid to Celtic Leisure for the 
operation of Leisure Services.

1,260 8% 100 0 0

ELLL 
1002

ES&C Management & 
Admin

Andrew 
Thomas

Deletion of vacant post in Data 
Unit

1,107 2% 25 0 0

ELLL 
1003

ES&C Cleaning services Chris 
Millis

Movement toward full cost 
recovery of cleaning service 
over 2 year period, to be funded 
by schools.

166 100% 80 85 0

ELLL 
1004

ES&C School transport - 
out of county

Chris 
Millis

Pupils leaving out of county 
placements

268 38% 71 30 0

SSHH 
1001

SCHWB Savings re Adult 
Family Placement 
fees

Angela 
Thomas

Adult Family Placements (AFP) 
provide family based care to 
adults in the community who 
need support, similar to 
children's foster care. Proposal 
to reduce the rates paid to AFP 
carers in line with the rates paid 
to children's foster carers.

14,753 0% 20 0 0

T
udalen21



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

18

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

SSHH 
1002

SCHWB Review of Joint NPT 
& CHC packages of 
care

Angela 
Thomas

NPT to contribute 50% of cost 
less service user contribution. 
Increased cost will fall on 
Swansea Bay UHB. Net saving 
following additional investment 
of £80k to take legal advice and 
recover debt.

28,630 0% 28 0 0

SSHH 
1003

SCHWB Increased income 
from financial 
assessments

Angela 
Thomas

Ensure that all income due is 
collected

28,630 0% 20 0 0

SSHH 
1004

SCHWB Early Intervention 
and Prevention 
(Building Safe & 
Resilient 
Communities). 

Angela 
Thomas

Low level care provided by the 
community.  Support the 
development of community 
activity and volunteering 
opportunities, to prevent/delay 
the need for statutory service 
intervention.

48,220 0% 50 0 0

SSHH 
1005

SCHWB Reduction in NPT's 
contribution to the 
joint equipment 
service

Angela 
Thomas

The contribution rate is based 
on usage of the equipment 
service but will vary if usage 
increases.

451 2% 10 0 0

SSHH 
1006

SCHWB Accommodation Angela 
Thomas

Accommodation savings due to 
reduction in the number of 
teams in Cimla hospital has led 
to a reduced service charge.

95 20% 20 0 0

T
udalen22



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

19

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

SSHH 
1007

SCHWB Savings from 
external contracts

Angela 
Thomas

Savings from external contracts, 
cancel or reduce service level 
agreements with providers that 
are not delivering value for 
money.

48,220 0% 40 0 0

SSHH 
1008

SCHWB Staff turnover 
savings

Angela 
Thomas/K
eri Warren

Staff vacancy management 
savings

37,584 0% 100 0 0

SSHH 
1009

SCHWB Savings achieved in 
2019/20 rolling into 
2020/21 from 
reduced number of 
LAC

Keri 
Warren

Continue to implement and 
manage the LAC strategy. 
Ensure that only those children 
who need to be in care are 
admitted and remain, and that 
those in care will always remain 
a top priority

21,252 1% 250 0 0

SSHH 
1010

SCHWB Savings in legal 
budgets

Keri 
Warren

Reduced number of Looked 
After Children enabling savings 
from a reduction in 
commissioned reports and use 
of external legal services for 
court proceedings.

480 21% 100 0 0

          
ENVT 
1001

R&SD Planning Policy Nicola 
Pearce

Various expenditure savings 311 2% 5 0 0

ENVT 
1002

R&SD Countryside & 
Wildlife

Nicola 
Pearce

Income generation and 
expenditure savings

274 3% 8 0 0

ENVT 
1003

R&SD Building regulations 
and Business 
Support Unit

Nicola 
Pearce

Removal of vacant post 267 9% 25 0 0

T
udalen23



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

20

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

ENVT 
1004

S&E Road Safety Driver 
Training Programme

David 
Griffiths

Increase income 244 4% 10 0 0

ENVT 
1005

S&E CCTV Mobile 
Enforcement

David 
Griffiths

Increase operational hours to 
generate more income

-447 -2% 10 0 0

ENVT 
1006

R&SD Public 
Conveniences 

Simon 
Brennan

Savings from removal of NNDR 165 5% 8 0 0

ENVT 
1007

R&SD Sandfields Young 
Business Centre

Simon 
Brennan

Increase income from rent -7 -91% 6 0 0

ENVT 
1008

R&SD Estates Simon 
Brennan

Increase income from rent 618 3% 20 0 0

ENVT 
1009

R&SD Building 
Maintenance

Simon 
Brennan

Reduce expenditure 1,734 1% 25 0 0

          
CORP 
702

CAB ICT Staff reductions Karen 
Jones

Development capacity will 
reduce and service requests will 
take longer to effect. Income 
generation and/or collaborative 
opportunities may offset some 
job losses/service issues.

4,022 4% 160 0 0

CORP 
902

CAB Reduce 
management cost – 
Asst. Chief Exec and 
Digital Services 
Division

Karen 
Jones

Management review following 
staff turnover

8,158 1% 30 30 0

T
udalen24



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

21

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

CORP 
903

CAB Digital strategy - 
further 
transformation of 
customer services

Karen 
Jones

Following success of the Digital 
strategy this has enabled further 
remodelling of customer 
services to reflect a shift in 
customer volumes between face 
to face, online and telephone 
channels. This will mean a 
gradual reduction in face to face 
services. Automation of 
telephone calls at contact 
Centre Service leading to a 
reduction in the number of jobs

662 10% 36 30 0

CORP 
904

CAB Income generation - 
info asset 
sponsorship - 
implementing the 
corporate 
communications and 
community relations 
strategy

Karen 
Jones

Income Generation and Digital 
Strategy - Introduce targeted 
sponsorship and advertising 
policy for the Council's 
information assets, based on 
ethically and commercially 
sound policy. The business case 
is being developed and is likely 
to require pump prime funding 
i.e. invest to save

313 26% 0 30 50

T
udalen25



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

22

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

CORP 
905

CAB Income generation - 
working towards a 
self-financing CCTV 
service

Karen 
Jones

Revisit the 2015 options 
appraisal to identify a strategy 
that can reduce/eliminate the 
Council subsidy for this non 
statutory service. Capital 
investment will be required to 
ensure the service can satisfy 
insurance, business continuity 
and service requirements

235 51% 0 40 80

CORP 
906

CAB Income generation - 
refocus the 
communications, 
community relations, 
customer services to 
promote Council 
services & functions

Karen 
Jones

Market the Council's services 
and functions to staff and the 
external customer base to 
increase participation in paid for 
services. 

313 38% 20 40 60

CORP 
1001

CAB Staff reductions - 
Business Support

Craig 
Griffiths

Following retirement, operating 
hours of new role reduced from 
37 to 30. Service efficiency 
affected, but limited effect on 
staff and service delivery.

2,242 0% 5 0 0

CORP 
1002

CAB Staff reductions Craig 
Griffiths

Post deleted when paralegal 
leaves the team in June 2020 to 
commence a training contract. 
Reduced support to solicitors, 
workload to be absorbed by 
solicitors.

2,242 1% 21 6 0

CORP 
1003

CAB Staff reductions Craig 
Griffiths

Delete Licensing Section vacant 
post

2,242 1% 15 0 0

T
udalen26



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

23

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

CORP 
1004

CAB Reduction in Legal 
Services Resources

Craig 
Griffiths

Rely on other methods of 
research and in house IT 
system development. Potential 
reduction in resources available 
to fee earners. Training to be 
provided to access alternative 
resources.

38 26% 0 10 0

CORP 
1005

CAB Legal Services 
increased income

Craig 
Griffiths

Registrars - increased income 
from approved premises and 
online services. Legal services  - 
increased income from Traffic 
Order charges to utility 
companies, third parties, Town 
Councils, land charges via new 
Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR) charging 
structure and Procurement team 
support to organisations

178 11% 14 5 0

CORP 
1006

CAB Deletion of vacant 
posts in Financial 
Services

Huw 
Jones

Work has already been re-
organised to mitigate against 
most of the reduction in staffing 
with further changes in 20/21 
following Voluntary Retirement.

5,186 4% 190 0 0

CORP 
1007

CAB HR staff reductions Sheenagh 
Rees

Restructuring took place 
following VR in March 2019, and 
work has been redistributed.

2,186 2% 42 0 0

CORP 
1008

CAB Learning, training & 
Development staff 
reduction 

Sheenagh 
Rees

Restructuring took place 
following VR in September 
2019, and work has been 
redistributed.

810 3% 24 0 0

T
udalen27



Appendix 1
Draft Budget Savings, Cuts and Income Generation for Consultation

24

Ref 
No. Board Description Lead Main Impacts

Net 
Budget 
2019/20

% 
saving

2020/21 
£000

2021/22 
£000

2022/23 
£000

CORP 
1009

CAB Health & safety - 
removal of British 
Standard 
Occupational Health 
and Safety 18001 
accreditation

Sheenagh 
Rees

Internal cross cutting audit will 
replace the OHSAS 18001 
accreditation

10 100% 10 0 0

OTH 
1001

CAB Savings in Capital 
financing budget

Huw 
Jones

Control expenditure and new 
borrowings within budget

19,273 3% 500 0 0

          
    Total   2,148 346 190T

udalen28



Appendix 2
Revenue Service Pressures 2020 to 2023

25

Ref Service area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
  £'000 £'000 £'000
ELLL5 Home to School Transport - Welsh Medium 2nd campus 35 0 0
ELLL9a Teachers Increased Pension contributions from 16.48% to 23.6%  - Centre 80 0 0
ELLL9b Teachers Increased Pension contributions from 16.48% to 23.6%  - Schools 1,468 0 0
ELLL11 Additional Learning Needs Investment 400 500 500
ELLL14 Schools - pupil number changes 243 250 250
ELLL15 SEN transport 100 0 0
ELLL17 Out of county placements (inc transport) 166 87 0
ELLL18 Think Family Partnership  and Family Information Service - staff capacity 17 0 0
ELLL21 Free School Meals - increase in free school meals take up due to protection for 

families on UC. 
100 0 0

ELLL22 Home to School transport - loss of spare seat income 28 0 0
ELLL23 School base budget - re Teachers pay and pension funded from grant in 19/20 1,802 0 0
ELLL24 Teachers pay award Sept 19 - schools 300 0 0
ELLL25 Teachers pay award sept 19 - Centre 10 0 0
SSHH51 Residential care - additional provision above 2% increase 280 280 280
SSHH53 National Living Wage - additional contract costs 250 250 250
SSHH54 Adult Services Learning Disabilities - transition growth 200 200 200
SSHH58 Youth Offending Service - increased staffing 100 0 0
SSHH60 Adult Services - Learning Disabilities extra placements costs 1,000 0 0
SSHH61 Adult Services - Elderly extra placement costs 414 0 0
SSHH62 Adult Services - Mental Health extra placement costs 185 0 0
ENVT26 Additional funds for LDP review for the period 2020 to 2024 £157k available in 

reserves
50 100 0

ENVT38 Estates - premises and other costs 30 0 0
ENVT39 Asset sponsorship reduced income 40 0 0
ENVT40 Ash Dieback Surveys, action plan & works. £1.4m over 15 years 75 0 0

T
udalen29



Appendix 2
Revenue Service Pressures 2020 to 2023

26

Ref Service area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
  £'000 £'000 £'000
ENVT42 Shortfall in Sustainable Waste Management Grant 127 0 0
ENVT43 Recycling wood waste from Civic Amenity Sites 140 0 0
ENVT44 Refuse collection change in service provision 45 0 0
ENVT47 Car parks - NNDR costs 28 0 0
ENVT48 Metal Box running costs 360 0 0
ENVT50 Gypsy site additional running costs 40 0 0
ENVT51 Civic Building above inflation electricity increase 20 0 0
CORP17 Housing Benefit Admin Subsidy Grant reductions 50 25 25
CORP19 Procurement Online Resources - Sell to Wales and e-tendering services - possible 

end of WG payment. 
0 40 0

CORP21 ICT Microsoft Licence 50 50 0
CORP22 Procurement - additional resources to manage increased Social Services and 

Environment contracts
55 5 0

CORP23 Performance and Risk Management System- 3 year license expires mid-2020, 
previously funded from reserves

40 0 0

CORP24 Domestic Violence Advice Service IDVA worker 38 0 0
CORP25 Administration of City Deal Scrutiny Committee work 28 0 0
CORP26 Coroner - increase in post mortem fees 20 0 0
CORP27 Welsh Translation- increased work volume in Democratic and Corporate Services 20 0 0

OTH009 New Green Book pay scale additional costs 150 250 250
OTH010 Increase in standby allowances agreed from December 2019. 151 0 0
OTH011 Contingency for additional pay award 1,300 0 0
CONT1 General Contingency 586 2,000 2,000
CONT7 Capital financing costs re 21st Century Schools Band B investment 0 0 800
 Total 10,621 4,037 4,555

T
udalen30



Appendix 3

27

Inflation and other Factors

 Base 
Budget 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

 £m
Teachers Pay 63.3 2.31% 2.00% 2.00%
Non Teachers Pay 131.5 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
LGPS Pension Fund 
Revaluation 24.4 -1.85% 1.88% 3.32%

Property 7.1 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Property - NNDR 3.4 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Property - Energy 3.9 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Transport 7.4 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Car Allowances 6.0 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Supplies and Services 120.0 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Levies-Fire Authority 7.4 9.50% 4.00% 4.00%
    
External Income 39.1 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
WG - RSG & NNDR 214.8 4.45% 1.00% 1.00%
Council Tax 73.7 5.00% 5.00% TBD

TBD - To be determined

Tudalen31



Appendix 4

28

Provisional Settlement Specific Grants Schedule 2020/21

 £'000s £'000s £'000s 
Portfolio and Grant Name 2019-20 2020-21 Change

Education
Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 1 140,623 154,399 13,776
Sixth Form funding 94,664 93,943 -721
Pupil Development Grant 92,767 101,367 8,600
Professional Learning2 15,000 0 -15,000
Teachers Pay Grant 2019/20 12,018 RSG N/A
Youth Support3 10,056 10,056 0

Transition support for Minority Ethnic and Gypsy, Roma, 
Traveller learners4 10,000 10,000 0

Costs associated with Teachers Pay5,6 7,500 0 -7,500

PDG Access4 5,154 8,354 3,200
Reducing Infant Class Sizes Grant - Revenue 5,000 6,000 1,000
Adult Community Learning 4,418 4,418 0
Additional Learning Needs Innovation Fund 3,331 3,268 -62
Small and Rural Schools Grant 2,500 2,500 0
Whole School Approach 1,526 2,000 474
SEREN Foundation grant 655 655 0
School based supply cluster trial5 350 0 -350
SEREN Academy grant 329 329 0
School Business Managers5 200 0 -200

Foundation Phase Pilot (Flintshire only)5 130 0 -130

Additional Learning Needs4 0 7,192 7,192

Elective Home Education4 0 1,500 1,500
TOTAL 406,220 405,982 -239

Housing and Local Government
Children and Communities Grant(CCG)7 136,442 135,442 -1,000
Housing Support Grant 123,688 123,688 0
Teachers’ Pension Grant 39,112 RSG N/A
Affordable Housing Grant (AHG)5 18,762 0 -18,762
Sustainable Waste Management Grant 18,200 16,400 -1,800
Food and Residual Waste Treatment Gate Fee Support 10,017 13,300 3,284
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal 10,000 10,000 0
Cardiff Harbour Authority 5,223 5,223 0
Child Burials 600 600 0
Digital Transformation Fund 552 1,150 598
EU Support for Local Resilience Forums5 500 0 -500

Tudalen32



Appendix 4

29

Portfolio and Grant Name 2019-20 2020-21 Change
Support for Public Service Boards 400 400 0
South Wales Regional Aggregate Working Party (RAWP) 50 50 0
Waste Planning Monitoring Report - North Wales and 
South East Wales 49 50 1

Rural Housing Enabler 47 47 0
North Wales Regional Aggregate Working Party (RAWP) 25 25 0
Mid and South Wales Regional Viability Model and 
Assessment 19 0 -19

Waste Planning Monitoring Report - South West Wales 16 16 0
Armed Forces Day 15 20 5
Circular Economy Projects 0 1,000 1,000
TOTAL 363,716 307,411 -56,305

Health and Social Services
Childcare Offer- Childcare Costs 46,150 56,177 10,027
Social Care Workforce and Sustainability Pressures Grant 30,000 40,000 10,000
Substance Misuse Action Fund 25,063 25,063 0
A Healthier West Wales (supported programmes 1, 3, 7) 4,484 7,483 2,999
Community Services - North Wales 3,732 2,041 -1,691
Integrated early intervention and intensive support for 
Children, Young People and Families - North Wales5 2,407 0 -2,407

Childcare Offer- Administration Grant 2,323 2,323 0
Adoption Services 2,300 2,300 0
Together for Mental Health - North Wales 2,072 238 -1,834
Social Care Tasks Performed by a Registered Nurse in 
Nursing 1,900 RSG N/A

Seamless Services For People with Learning Disabilities - 
North Wales5 1,651 0 -1,651

Childcare Offer- SEN Grant 1,500 1,500 0
National Approach to Statutory Advocacy for Children and 
Young People 550 550 0

Early Years Integration Transformation Programme 463 463 0
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 263 263 0
Complex Needs Funding - Substance Misuse and Mental 
Health 229 1,018 789

Maintaining the Delivery of the Wales Adoption Register  178 178 0
National Fostering Framework – Developing Foster Wales 
Brand and Marketing 100 100 0

Drug & Alcohol Initiatives Naloxone Programme 80 80 0
Support Revision and Development of Wales 
Safeguarding Procedures for Adults and Children at Risk 75 75 0

Supporting Safeguarding Boards to deliver training for the 
implementation of Welsh Government policy and 
legislation  

60 60 0

Residential care homes for Children - task and finish 
group 50 50 0

Tudalen33



Appendix 4

30

Portfolio and Grant Name 2019-20 2020-21 Change
Review of the Local Authority Performance Management 
Framework Grant 34 34 0

Contact Centres 18 21 3
TOTAL 125,682 140,017 14,335

Economy and Transport
Free Concessionary Bus travel 60,133 60,133 0
Bus Services Support Grant 25,000 25,000 0
Bus Revenue Support - Traws Cymru 2,530 3,187 657
Road Safety Grant 2,000 2,000 0
Arfor innovation Fund 1,000 1,000 0
Anglesey Airport - Operation & Maintenance 800 800 0
Continued support for Regional Skills Partnerships 495 495 0
Swansea Tidal Lagoon Taskforce5 220 0 -220

Business Improvement District5 78 0 -78
Youth Discounted Travel Scheme (My Travel Pass) 60 60 0
TOTAL 92,316 92,675 359
   
Environment, Energy and Rural Affairs
Land Drainage and Coastal Protection 2,400 1,469 -931
Environment Act 1995 (Feasibility Study for Nitrogen 
Dioxide Compliance) Air Quality Direction5 1,637 0 -1,637

Local Authority Animal Health and Welfare Framework 
Funding 200 200 0

Coastal Risk Management Programme8 151 1,600 1,449
Smart Living Initiative 135 185 50
Enforcement support to take forward legislation relating to 
bovine TB5 63 0 -63

Non-domestic (Business) Rates Support for Hydropower 8 9 1
TOTAL 4,594 3,463 -1,132

Deputy Minister and Chief Whip   
Period Dignity in Schools 2,300 2,300 0
Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse & Sexual 
Violence Grant 1,938 1,938 0

Community Cohesion Grant 1,120 1,120 0
Period Dignity in Communities9 220 220 0
TOTAL 5,578 5,578 0

Culture, Sport and Tourism
Regional Tourism Engagement Fund (RTEF) 976 976 0
MALD strategic grants, including Fusion 331 331 0
Specialist Service Grants 25 25 0
TOTAL 1,331 1,331 0

Tudalen34



Appendix 4

31

Portfolio and Grant Name 2019-20 2020-21 Change

International Relations and Welsh Language   
Promote and Facilitate the use of the Welsh Language 
(WLG) 314 314 0

Major Events Unit Grants Scheme 150 600 450
TOTAL 464 914 450

Finance and Trefnydd
High Street and Retail Rates Relief 23,600 24,200 600
Cyber Resilience Revenue Grant 98 800 702
TOTAL 23,698 25,000 1,302

All Grants  1,023,599 982,370 -41,229
All Grants excluding NA and RSG transfers (for like-
for like comparison) 970,418 982,370 11,952

Tudalen35



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cabinet

10th January 2020

Report of Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer
K.Jones

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All Wards

Report Title: Draft Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 – Draft Equality Objectives

Purpose of Report
1. To seek Member approval to consult on draft equality objectives and potential 

actions as part of the development of a revised Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 
(set out in Appendix 1).

Executive Summary
2. Under the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 we, 

along with other public bodies, have a duty to develop Equality Objectives and 
produce a Strategic Equality Plan containing equality objectives and other 
information as required in the Regulations. 

3. We are required to review our equality objectives at least every four years and 
have adopted the same timetable for a review of our Strategic Equality Plan.  Our 
current Strategic Equality Plan was approved on 14 October 2015 but has recently 
been extended to April 2020. This will allow more time to improve the alignment 
of the new Plan with the Corporate Plan 2020-2023 (also to be published in April 
2020); to take into account the review of the Healthy Relationships for Stronger 
Communities Strategy; the exploration of the requirements and impact of the 
soon to be introduced socio-economic duty as well as the outputs of the Poverty 
Symposium held in October 2019.

4. The Equality and Community Cohesion Group has been instrumental in the 
development of the equality objectives. The draft equality objectives have been 
developed using information gathered from a range of sources: feedback from 
internal engagement activities; local, national and regional research publications 
as well as relevant strategies and plans that are already in place or being 

Tudalen37

Eitem yr Agenda5



developed (a list of these, along with links where available, are included in the 
background papers).

5. The themes of the Equality and Human Rights publication ‘Is Wales Fairer?’ 
provides a structure which reflects issues we have already identified as needing 
to be addressed and which are supported by the findings of local research 
recently undertaken. 

Background
6. Under the Equality Act 2010 the Council is required to have due regard to the 

need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation, advance 
equality of opportunity and foster good relations amongst and between people of 
different protected groups; the Public Sector Equality Duty. 

7. In Wales specific duties have been introduced under the Equality Act 2010 
(Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011 to help public bodies carry out the 
public sector equality duty. Under these regulations we along with other public 
bodies have a duty to develop equality objectives and produce a Strategic 
Equality Plan containing the objectives and other information.

8. We have produced two Strategic Equality Plans since the introduction of the 
duty; April 2012 and November 2015. The development and implementation of 
the latter plan had been brought forward six months to take into account the 
various topical issues of the time.   

9. On 30 October 2019 Cabinet approved an extension to the current Strategic 
Equality Plan to April 2020 which will allow sufficient time to improve its 
alignment with our Corporate Plan, to better explore the requirements and 
impact of the soon to be introduced socio economic duty as well as to take on 
board the outcomes of various projects/initiatives such as the Poverty 
Symposium held in October 2019.

Draft Equality Objectives 
10. In drafting the equality objectives we have considered various national and local 

research findings; latest data available to the Council and issues raised by local 
equality groups during meetings of the Equality and Community Cohesion Group.

11. Local research was carried out with members of the BME community, people 
with experiences of low income, disabled people, members of the Gypsy and 
Traveller community and communities in general.  A number of common threads 
were identified such as hate crime/incidents, poverty and barriers when 

Tudalen38



accessing services (these research exercises are referenced in the’ List of 
Background Papers’ section).  

12. In addition we considered the work that we are already undertaking both as an 
individual organisation and as part of regional partnership working.  This includes 
the revision of the Healthy Relationships for Stronger Communities Strategy; 
Smart and Connected - A Revised Digital Strategy; and the Chwarae Teg Fair 
Employer Scheme. 

13.The Equality and Human Rights Commission’s ‘Is Wales Fairer?’ Report has been a 
key source of data to inform the development of the draft equality objectives.  It 
is the most comprehensive review of how Wales is performing on equality and 
human rights.  The Report focuses on six themes: Education, Health, Personal 
Safety, Living Standards, Employment and Participation and these appear to 
reflect those areas which have been highlighted locally.

14. As a result we have adopted these themes for our draft equality objectives (also 
encouraged by the Equality and Human Rights Commission).  We have also 
identified key areas of work and potential actions (although these are not 
exhaustive) that will help us achieve our objectives. 

Financial Appraisal
15. It is proposed that the draft equality objectives in the new Strategic Equality Plan 

will be met through actions already identified in existing strategies/plans or those 
due to be developed.  The delivery of this work will be against an ongoing 
challenging financial backdrop. 

Integrated Impact Assessment
16. A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 

discharging its legislative duties under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh Language 
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The first stage impact 
assessment has indicated that a more in-depth assessment is required.

An overview of the initial Integrated Impact Assessment has been included below 
in summary form only and it is essential that Members read the Integrated 
Impact Assessment, which is attached to the report at Appendix 2, for the 
purposes of the meeting.

Tudalen39

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/wales-fairer-2018


The Integrated Impact Assessment will be revisited in light of responses to the 
consultation and a final impact assessment will accompany the final decision 
report in due course.

Valleys Communities Impact:
17. The draft equality objectives, and the actions identified to deliver them, will 

contribute to projects supporting the valley communities.

Workforce Impact
18. The draft equality objectives, and the actions identified to deliver them, will be 

achieved against a backdrop of a reduced workforce alongside ongoing financial 
challenges 

Legal Impact
19. These draft equality objectives and potential actions have been developed to 

meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011.  

Risk Management
20. We have a legal duty under the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) 

Regulations 2011 to develop equality objectives and publish these, alongside 
other information, in a Strategic Equality Plan. Failure to develop equality 
objectives could lead to a compliance notice from the Equality and Human Rights 
Commission, an independent statutory agency which was established under the 
Equality Act 2006.

Crime and Disorder Impact
21. The Council has a legal duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

to carry out all its various functions with “due regard to the need to prevent 
Crime and Disorder in its area”.

22. The equality objectives contains specific proposals to prevent and address hate 
crime and domestic abuse thereby assisting us in discharging the crime and 
disorder duty.

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Impacts
23. The Council has a legal duty under Section 2(1) of the Violence Against Women, 

Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 when exercising relevant 

Tudalen40



functions to ‘have regard (along with all other relevant matters) to the need to 
remove or minimise any factors which:
(a) increase the risk of violence against women and girls, or
(b) exacerbate the impact of such violence on victims.’

24. The equality objectives contain specific proposals to prevent and address 
domestic abuse thereby assisting us in discharging this duty.

Consultation
25. There is no requirement for external consultation on this item. 

Recommendations
26. Members authorise the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer to 

initiate formal public consultation on the draft equality objectives and potential 
actions as contained in Appendix 1 (consultation period from 16 January to 20 
February 2020). 

Reason for Proposed Decision
27. To meet the statutory requirements set out in the Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 

Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011.  

Implementation of Decision
28. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in.

Appendices
29. Appendix 1 – Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 - draft Equality Objectives and 

Actions
30. Appendix 2 - Integrated Impact Assessment v1 

List of Background Papers
31. Strategic Equality Plan 2015-2019 Draft Annual Report 2018-2019
32. Equality Act 2010  
33.  Equality Act 2010 (Statutory Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011  
34.  Draft Equality Objectives and Actions – Background documents:

 Is Wales Fairer? – Equality and Human Rights Commission 
 Healthy Relationships for Stronger Communities Strategy (currently being 

revised) 

Tudalen41

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=158&MId=8768&Ver=4
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2011/1064/contents/made
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/publication-download/wales-fairer-2018
http://www.safernpt.org/media/8113/summary-strategy-healthy-relationships-for-stronger-communities.pdf


 Chwarae Teg Fair Play Employer Scheme - Action Plan 
 Neath Port Talbot Poverty Symposium Report  
 Community Cohesion Survey 
 Stickability: Supportive Services for Gypsy and Traveller Communities in 

Neath and Port Talbot – research undertaken by Wales School for Social Care 
Research, Swansea University.

 Time to Change Wales Campaign Employer Pledge  
 Smart and Connected - A Revised Digital Strategy   
 Strategic Plan for Autistic Spectrum Disorder  
 Community Profile - NPT BME Community Association
 Making Wales the best place in the world to grow older - Older People's 

Commissioner
 Making Money Work (people’s lived experience in Neath Port Talbot) – 

research undertaken by Toynbee Hall and Tai Tarian 
 Council’s Website Audit 
 Community of Practice – feedback from initial event 

Officer Contact
35. Mrs Karen Jones, Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer. Tel: 01639 

763284 or e-mail: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen42

http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s56409/Fair%20Play%20Employer%20Scheme%20Update%20December%202019%20Appendix%202.pdf
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s56416/Time%20to%20Change%20Wales%20Employer%20Pledge%20Action%20Plan%20Update%20Appendix%201.pdf
http://moderngov.neath-porttalbot.gov.uk/documents/s44090/CABINET%20-%20smart%20and%20connected%20post%20consultation.pdf
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/documents/g7941/Public%20reports%20pack%2008th-Nov-2018%2014.00%20Social%20Care%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Scrutiny%20Committee.pdf?T=10&LLL=0
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/publications/pub-story/19-04-03/Making_Wales_the_best_place_in_the_world_to_grow_older_Commissioner_s_Strategy_2019-22.aspx#.Xd6VXOQ3bcs
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/publications/pub-story/19-04-03/Making_Wales_the_best_place_in_the_world_to_grow_older_Commissioner_s_Strategy_2019-22.aspx#.Xd6VXOQ3bcs
mailto:k.jones3@npt.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 - Draft Equality Objectives and Actions

To reduce inequality and tackle the causes of inequality 

Objective: Education – to ensure children and young people are the best they can be 

Actions
Attainment

• We will work with schools to reduce inequality in attainment across Foundation Phase and all Key Stages amongst 
specific groups of pupils and help support them to fulfil their potential 

• We will target support to families in need to reduce the potential for children to have  an adverse childhood 
experience 

Non-Attendance and Exclusions
• We will work with pupils, parents/carers and schools to reduce the number of instances of non-attendance and 

exclusions in all our schools
• We will work with parents/carers of pre-school children to ensure that they are prepared for school

Bullying 
• We will collect data from schools and support schools to address bullying and harassment in all its forms and 

work with them to address trends/issues 
• We will work with schools to support pupils who are victims of bullying and work with perpetrators of bullying 
• We will work with schools to identify and address the reasons for bullying 

T
udalen43



Objective: Health and Wellbeing – to promote wellbeing and good mental health and tackle mental health stigma and 
discrimination

Actions
Adults

• As an employer we will raise awareness of mental health 
• As an employer we will update and implement policies to address mental health in the workplace  
• We will provide information to employees about mental health and signpost to support services 
• We will contribute to the Public Services Board’s work to reduce suicide rates in the county borough 

Children/Young People 
• We will redesign our systems relating to Emotional, Mental Health Wellbeing support to provide a simpler 

integrated access to services 

Objective: Personal Safety – to ensure people and communities are safe, respected and free from violence and abuse 

Actions
Domestic Abuse 

• We will increase the reports of Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence in Neath Port 
Talbot, through awareness raising and challenging attitudes

• We will increase awareness in children and young people of the importance of safe, equal and healthy 
relationships and that abusive behaviour is always wrong

• Provide all victims with equal access to appropriately resourced, high quality, needs led, strength based, gender 
responsive services across Neath Port Talbot

T
udalen44



Hate Crime
• We will work with members of local equality groups, partners and our communities to encourage the reporting of 

hate incidents/crime and ensure people get support which is fit for purpose
• We will support the use of the BME Community Association Access Card (to help breakdown language barriers 

when accessing service)
• We will support the BME Community Association to build on the work already undertaken in the Community 

Profiling exercise as well as to extend its scope   
• We will work with partners to consider the feedback from the Community Cohesion Survey 

Objective: Employment – to ensure our workforce is more reflective of our community, our policies are fair and equitable 
and gender pay gaps are reduced

Actions
Diversity 

• We will ensure a fair and transparent recruitment and selection process that encourages a wider talent pool and 
facilitates a more equal gender balance

• We will promote, facilitate analyse and monitor flexibility in the workplace at all levels, to enable women to 
progress and to ensure compatibility with a multi-generational workforce

• We will collect and monitor data in more depth related to flexible working  
• We will scrutinise the Shared Parental Leave uptake to monitor gender balance and encourage uptake across 

genders

Policies
• We will implement the Fair Play Employer Scheme Gender Diversity Action Plan
• We will address the gender pay gap within the Council by implementing the Fair Play Employers Action Plan 

T
udalen45



Objective: Participation – to ensure services are accessible for all and people and communities are able to better 
influence decisions that affect them 

Actions
Access to services 

• We will continuously review and update our website to improve its accessibility 
• We will work to address the barriers people and organisations face to participate on-line
• We will work to identify the opportunities across the County Borough for citizens to improve their digital skills 

and understanding
• We will work through the Community Safety Partnership and the Safeguarding Board to prevent Cybercrime and 

protect people against exploitation
• We will improve physical access to the committee facilities in both Neath and Port Talbot Civic Centres 

Social and Community Cohesion

• We will support local groups, including the BME Community Association, to develop community activities and 
events

• We will develop our links with our faith communities  
• We will provide information and a signposting service for those who wish to learn English and/or Welsh   
• We will develop/strengthen policies to respond to an aging population and support the formation of a new group 

to address this   
• We will work the members of the Trans community to help raise awareness 
• We will develop a rights based approach to our work, with a focus on children’s rights working with Youth Mayor, 

Youth Council amongst others 

T
udalen46



• We will establish engagement mechanisms, for example a new Citizens’ Panel, and use responses to ensure that 
the Council’s policy making and service development is informed by what matters to people

Objective: Living standards – to work to reduce poverty and support independent living 

Actions
Poverty  

• We will develop an anti-poverty strategy 
• We will embrace the new socio economic duty 

Independent living 
• We will support the Regional Partnership Board to develop and continue to provide a sustainable range of 

services that meet demand, enabling individuals to remain at home maintaining their independence for as long as 
possible receiving appropriate support at times of need

• We will continue to help people to learn and interact with others so they can be part of their communities
• We will help support people to live as independent a life as possible  

Transport
• We will support community transport initiatives 
• We will lead the regional transport work with the Swansea Bay City Deal 

T
udalen47



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



Appendix 2

1

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
This Integrated Impact Assessment considers the duties and requirements of the following legislation in order to inform and ensure 
effective decision making and compliance:

 Equality Act 2010   
 Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015
 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
 Environment (Wales) Act 2016 

Version Control
Version Author  Job title Date 
Version 1 Rhian Headon Corporate Policy Office - Equality and Welsh Language 17.12.19

1. Details of the initiative

Title of the Initiative:  Strategic Equality Plan – Equality Objectives 
1a Service Area:   Corporate Policy Unit 
1b Directorate: Chief Executive’s Office

1c Summary of the initiative: 
The Strategic Equality Plan contains the Council’s Equality Objectives along with information on how the Council will 
address equality issues, promote equality amongst staff and the public as well as meeting the legal requirements of the 
Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Duties 2011. 
The first stage in the production of the Strategic Equality Plan is the development of the objectives along with the 
identification of associated potential actions. With the implementation of the objectives our aim is to reduce and tackle the 
causes of inequality.

1d Who will be directly affected by this initiative? 
Those who share protected characteristics of age, race, disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment and 
religion/belief. 
It is likely that carers and possibly women who are pregnant/on maternity may be affected indirectly. 

T
udalen49



2

1e When and how were people consulted?  
Initial Development – an event was held with the Community of Practice for Engagement and Involvement to obtain an 
insight into what was important to the groups they regularly engage with. The feedback from this event, along with the 
themes from the ‘Is Wales Fairer?’ was to be considered by the various groups as part of a pilot with the Community of 
Practice, however no feedback was received.
Based on both quantitative and qualitative evidence draft objectives were developed by the Equality and Community 
Cohesion Group. 

1f What were the outcomes of the consultation?
Initial Development – the pilot engagement work with the Community of Practice unfortunately did not provide feedback to 
help shape the objectives. However, using evidence already available and pertinent to the local need, including data held 
but the Council, local and national initiatives, recent local research findings, national research as well as people’s lived 
experiences, it has been possible to draft equality objectives. However, these will be tested during the public consultation.
 

2. Evidence 

What evidence was used in assessing the initiative?

Is Wales Fairer? – Equality and Human Rights Commission 
Healthy Relationships for Stronger Communities Strategy (currently being revised) 
Chwarae Teg Fair Play Employer Scheme - Action Plan 
Neath Port Talbot Poverty Symposium Report  
Community Cohesion Survey 
Stickability: Supportive Services for Gypsy and Traveller Communities in Neath and Port Talbot – research undertaken by Wales 
School for Social Care Research, Swansea University.
Time to Change Wales Campaign Employer Pledge  
Smart and Connected - A Revised Digital Strategy   
Strategic Plan for Autistic Spectrum Disorder  

T
udalen50



3

Community Profile - NPT BME Community Association
Making Wales the best place in the world to grow older - Older People's Commissioner
Making Money Work (people’s lived experience in Neath Port Talbot) – research undertaken by Toynbee Hall and Tai Tarian 
Council’s Website Audit 
Community of Practice – feedback from initial event 
SEP Annual Report 2018-2019

3. Equalities 

a) How does the initiative impact on people who share a protected characteristic? 

Protected Characteristic + - +/- Why will it have this impact?

Age 

It is anticipated that the impact will be positive on children and young adults, as well 
as older people. 
Children and Young People – working to improve educational attainment, non-
attendance and exclusions as well as to address bullying in schools will ensure 
pupils will achieve their full potential. The challenges faced by many prior to school 
is a key factor to achievement. By working to meet the objectives we and, where 
appropriate, our partners will endeavour to reduce obstacles to learning as well as 
ensuring children and young people and their families are supported throughout their 
school life to have the best outcomes possible.
Older people – our aging population is increasing and our work as an individual 
organisation and in partnership to support people remain independent for as long as 
possible is anticipated to have a positive impact. As a result of the implementation of 
actions under the various objectives positive impacts for older people are likely. 

Disability 

Working with partners to tackle hate incidents/crimes will help provide safer and 
more inclusive communities which will impact positively on those who have been 
subject to such victimisation due to their disability.
By focusing on mental health within the workplace we will provide support for those 
who experience mental health and help remove the stigma associated with it. 

T
udalen51



4

Access remains an issue for many but by working with groups to identify where 
improvements can be made, for example to our website and our committee rooms 
as well as in the digital arena we will be able to tackle and help reduce inaccessible 
services and communication.  

Gender reassignment 
It is anticipated that the objectives will impact positively on the trans community – by 
helping dispel negative attitudes through awareness raising, opportunities for greater 
participation and community cohesion. 

Marriage & civil partnership  Impacts on this group is unknown at this time but will be tested during consultation  

Pregnancy and maternity 

Impact on this group is unknown at this time it but will be tested during consultation. 
However, it is possible that there will be positive indirect impacts as a result of our 
work to promote wellbeing and good mental health, to ensure our employment 
policies are fair and equitable and to reduce poverty.  

Race 

It has been apparent from the various pieces of national and local research that 
members of the BME Community have encountered negative experiences from 
being victims of hate crime/incidents, to language barriers when accessing services. 
By addressing the personal safety and living standards objectives it is likely that the 
community will be impacted positively. 
In addition it is likely that the education and health and wellbeing objectives will have 
positive impacts for children and young people and their families while the 
employment objective will ensure we have policies and practices in place to 
encourage a workforce that better reflects our communities.  

Religion or belief 
Working more closely with our faith communities we will be in a position to better 
understand issues faced as a result of their faith which will improve the support, 
advice and service we are able to provide.

Sex 

The objectives aim to address the inequality experienced by many due to their sex. 
Our work in relation to gender pay will help alleviate and in time eradicate the 
imbalance between the genders as well as providing a foundation for future work in 
relation to unequal pay gaps. 
Although it is predominantly women who experience domestic abuse in NPT the 
number of male victims is increasing and it is recognised that there is limited support 

T
udalen52



5

and advice available to them. This has been identified in the Healthy Relationships 
for Safer Communities Strategy that is currently being revised. 
The gap in educational attainment between boys and girls, at its most basic level, is 
continuing. By working with schools we aim to put in place support and practices to 
address as well as ensuring families are also supported. 

Sexual orientation 

Our evidence indicates that the number of reports of hate crime/incidents for this 
particular group remains high, which appears to be supported by the responses 
received in the Community Cohesion Survey. It is anticipated that the 
implementation of the objectives will have a positive impact in helping reduce the 
numbers of instances. 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Consultation is required to identify actual impact, particularly in relation to the protected characteristics of Marriage & Civil 
Partnership and Pregnancy and Maternity, and to explore potential mitigating actions for consideration

T
udalen53



6

b) How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty? 
 

Public Sector Equality 
Duty (PSED) + - +/- Why will it have this impact? 

To eliminate discrimination, 
harassment and 
victimisation 



To advance equality of 
opportunity between 
different groups



To foster good relations 
between different groups 

The whole ethos of the Strategic Equality Plan is to eliminate discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation as well to advance equality of opportunity between 
different groups the implementation of the Plan will certainly progress this.
Our commitment to engagement with different groups and communities in the 
development of the objectives has allowed greater understanding between groups, 
a shared sense of purpose, and a sense of increasing confidence to reduce 
inequality and tackle its causes. 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Consultation is required to identify any actual impact and to explore potential mitigating actions for consideration

T
udalen54



7

4. Community Cohesion/Social Exclusion/Poverty 

+ - +/- Why will it have this impact?

Community Cohesion

 Working with our various communities we will help provide support and assistance to 
those who experience isolation and exclusion due to language barriers, encourage 
community activities and events and help people participate via appropriate forms of 
engagement to ensure their voices are heard in the development of policies. 

Social Exclusion  It would appear from available research, that the many facets of social exclusion are  
either a direct or indirect consequence of a small number of circumstances, for 
example access to public transport and digital services etc., low income or debt, 
isolation or limited opportunities.   
The various actions within the objectives go some way to help resolve these issues 
and provide opportunities for members of the various communities in Neath Port 
Talbot to take an active role (as far they may wish to) for their own benefit as well as 
for the community in which they live/associate with.  

Poverty  Addressing the causes and consequences of poverty will be a key feature of our 
work over the next few years especially based on the feedback from the Poverty 
Symposium and the various research projects undertaken locally and nationally. 
Over recent years we have become increasingly aware of the various aspects of 
poverty within our area and have identified work streams to address some of these; 
our work to address adverse childhood experiences is one such work stream.  
The development of an Anti-Poverty Strategy will provide a structured approach for 
our work and identify areas where greatest impacts can be made for those most in 
need. 
The soon to be introduced socio economic duty will provide further impetus for this 
work and we will ensure we are able to meet its requirements. 

T
udalen55



8

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts?

Consultation is required to identify any actual impact and to explore potential mitigating actions for consideration

5. Welsh

+ - +/- Why will it have this effect?  

What effect  does the 
initiative have on: 
- people’s opportunities to 

use the Welsh language


Opportunities to use Welsh will continue for all ages and linguistic abilities. We will 
continue to raise awareness of the language along with cultural and historic 
awareness as an employer as well as to support other organisations/third sector 
groups to also do so.  
As a service provider we will continue to and work on improving the availability and 
quality of our services through Welsh. 
Opportunities for staff will continue to be promoted so that the Welsh language is 
treated no less favourably than the English Language.

- treating the Welsh and 
English languages 
equally


We will continue to treat Welsh no less favourably than English as required by the 
Welsh language standards. 

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? 

Consultation is required to identify any actual impact and to explore potential mitigating actions for consideration

T
udalen56



9

6. Biodiversity 

How will the initiative assist or inhibit the ability to meet the Biodiversity Duty? 

Biodiversity Duty + - +/- Why will it have this impact? 

To maintain and enhance 
biodiversity  It is likely there will be no change as a result of this proposal

To promote the resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. supporting 
protection of the wider 
environment, such as air 
quality, flood alleviation, etc. 

 It is likely there will be no change as a result of this proposal

What action will be taken to improve positive or mitigate negative impacts? 

Consultation is required to identify any actual impact and to explore potential mitigating actions for consideration

T
udalen57



10

7. Well-being of Future Generations 
How have the five ways of working been applied in the development of the initiative? 

Ways of Working Details

i. Long term – looking at 
least 10 years (and up to 25 
years) ahead

Initial Development - Although the timescales for the Equality Objectives are relatively short, 4 
years, they have been developed in line with the following long-term Wellbeing Gola goals: 

 A more equal Wales 
 A Wales of cohesive communities 
 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language.      

ii. Prevention – preventing 
problems occurring or 
getting worse

Initial Development - It is anticipated that by working towards these objectives we will reduce 
and tackle the causes of inequality. The various plans and strategies linked to the objectives 
will further enhance this work

iii. Collaboration – working 
with other services internal 
or external 

Initial Development - The Equality and Community Cohesion Group, with a membership of 
council officers and representatives from a range of local equality groups has overseen and 
participated in the development of the objectives. The objectives have been developed taking 
into account various plans and strategies that are being/have been developed to meet both 
legal individual responsibilities as well as in partnership with others.

iv. Involvement – involving 
people,  ensuring they 
reflect the diversity of the 
population 

Initial Development - A range of varied sources have been used to inform the development of 
the objectives including life experiences of specific communities, the Equality and Community 
Cohesion Group, with a membership of council officers and representatives from a range of 
local equality groups. While greater involvement of people who share protected characteristics 
was planned these opportunities were not taken up in the initial stages. However, 
involvement/engagement will continue and any feedback will be taken into account prior to the 
objectives being finalised.

v. Integration – making 
connections to maximise 
contribution to:

Initial Development - The equality objectives as developed will help meet the Council’s 
Wellbeing objectives and complement the anticipated priorities and steps in the revised 
Corporate Plan 2020-2023 

Council’s well-being 
objectives

Initial Development 
Well-being Objective 1 - To improve the well-being of children and young people
Well-being Objective 2 - To improve the well-being of all adults who live in the county borough

T
udalen58



11

Well-being Objective 3 - To develop the local economy and environment so that the well-being 
       of people can be improved

Other public bodies 
objectives

Initial Development 
Objective 1: Support children in their early years, especially children at risk of adverse 

         childhood experiences
Objective 2: Create safe, confident and resilient communities, focusing on vulnerable people
Objective 3: Put more life into our later years - Ageing Well
Objective 4: Promote well-being through work and in the workplace                             
Objective 6: Tackle digital exclusion 

8. Monitoring Arrangements 
Provide information on the monitoring arrangements to:
Monitor the impact of the initiative on Equalities, Community Cohesion, the Welsh Measure, Biodiversity Duty and the Wellbeing 
Objectives.

9. Assessment Conclusions
Please provide details of the conclusions reached in relation to each element of the assessment:   

Conclusion
Equalities 

T
udalen59



12

Community Cohesion/ 
Social Exclusion/Poverty  
Welsh
Biodiversity
Well-being of Future 
Generations 

Overall Conclusion 
Please indicate the conclusion reached: 
 Continue - as planned as no problems and all opportunities have been maximised  
 Make adjustments - as potential problems/missed opportunities/negative impacts have been identified along 

with mitigating actions
 Justification - for continuing with the initiative even though there is a potential for negative impacts or missed opportunities
 STOP - redraft the initiative as actual or potential unlawful discrimination has been identified

Please provide details of the overall conclusion reached in relation to the initiative

10. Actions 
What actions are required in relation to obtaining further data/information, to reduce or remove negative impacts or improve positive 
impacts?  

Action Who will be responsible for 
seeing it is done? When will it be done by? How will we know we have 

achieved our objective?
Undertaken a public 
Consultation exercise to test 
the impact of the objectives on 
those who share protected 
characteristics.   

Rhian Headon February 2020 Feedback received 

T
udalen60



13

11. Sign off

Name Position Signature Date

Completed by
Signed off by Head of Service/Director 

T
udalen61



M
ae’r dudalen hon yn fw

riadol w
ag



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cabinet

10 January 2020

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer – 
K.Jones

Matter for Information

Wards Affected: All Wards

Report Title

Neath Port Talbot Citizens’ Panel Pilot

Purpose of Report

1. To provide Members with information on the introduction of a Neath Port Talbot 
Citizens’ Panel.

Executive Summary

2. A Citizens' Panel is a demographically representative group of residents, which 
helps to assess public preferences and opinions. 

3. To support the Council’s Communications and Engagement Strategy and to help 
meet our obligations under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015, a Neath Port Talbot Citizens’ Panel is to be launched in January 2020 and 
initially run for a period of 3 years, after which a review will take place.

Background

4. On 21 February 2018, Policy and Resources Cabinet Board approved a 
Corporate Communications and Community Relations Strategy which was 
subsequently endorsed by full Council. Officers undertook to report back to 
members at key stages as the strategy progressed.

5. One of the communications and engagement objectives contained within the 
strategy was “to strengthen the Council’s approach to consultation and 
engagement so that people can express their views and opinions about the 
Council’s work and feel that their voices are listened to”. 

6. One of the key tasks to be implemented to further this objective was to research 
options for introducing a citizens’ panel for Neath Port Talbot. In order to achieve 

Tudalen63

Eitem yr Agenda6



the best solution for the council’s limited Community Engagement budget, a 
bespoke solution has been developed whereby a proportion of the Citizens’ 
Panel work will be undertaken in-house, with specialised elements being 
delivered by ORS, a Swansea Based, independent social research practice.

Scope and Benefits of the Panel

7. The Citizens’ Panel will be open to residents of Neath Port Talbot aged 16 years 
and over. 

8. Following an initial online recruitment, the panel membership will be compared 
with census information for the county borough, then face-to-face recruitment will 
take place to target groups that are under-represented.

9. In line with the Council’s Smart & Connected Digital Strategy, a ‘digital first’ 
approach will be taken, whereby panellists will be required to participate online if 
they are able to do so. However, where residents wish to be part of the panel, 
but cannot participate online, paper versions of questionnaires will be made 
available.

10. By joining the NPT Citizens’ Panel, citizens will agree to be sent survey 
questionnaires up to 12 times per year.

11. The purpose of the Panel will be to: 

 make it easier for Neath Port Talbot residents to give feedback to the Council 
on its work and to contribute to policy and service change

 actively involve residents in decision making at a very early stage, so they 
help shape proposals before these go out to wider public consultation

 Develop a mechanism for obtaining quick and reliable feedback from 
residents about proposals and new ideas

 Help the Council understand residents’ perspectives to help make decisions.

Next Steps

12. The NPT Citizens’ Panel will be launched during the week commencing Monday 
13 January 2020. This will be supported by a comprehensive recruitment 
campaign.

13. Officers will report back to members at key stages  to update on progress.

Tudalen64



Financial Appraisal

14. The budget requirements for the first three years are as follows:

Year 1 (19/20) – Budget - £12,000
(Total costs are £11,138, plus contingency of £862.00)

Year 2 (20/21) – Budget - £19,000
(Total costs are £17,940, plus contingency of £1,060.00)

Year 3 (21/22) – Budget - £22,000
(Total costs are £20,640, plus contingency of £1,360.00)

The Citizens Panel will be funded from the existing Community Engagement 
budget (currently £20,984 for 2019/2020).  This budget funds other engagement 
activity and to bridge any gap in funding other budgets have been identified which 
are underspent.  Therefore there is no additional pressure that requires to be 
funded corporately.

Integrated Impact Assessment

15. There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact Assessment as this 
report is for information purposes. However, the recruitment will specifically aim 
to ensure that the NPT Citizens’ Panel is as representative of the communities 
within the county borough as possible. This will take account of geographic 
location and people who share protected characteristics are able to engage with 
the Council and have their voices heard.

Valleys Communities Impact:

16. The Panel will be representatives of the county borough population.

Workforce Impact

17. No implications.

Legal Impact

18. The pilot will help us to meet the requirement under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 to involve people in the work that the Council 
carries out. 

Tudalen65



Risk Management Impacts

19. The contract with ORS will be regularly monitored by the Corporate Engagement 
and Communications Officer. In addition, a set of performance measures for the 
Panel will be included in the integrated corporate performance and risk 
management system (CPMS), to regularly report on strategic and high level 
operational risks.

Consultation

20. There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.

Recommendations

21. It is recommended that Cabinet notes the arrangements made to launch the NPT 
Citizens’ Panel. 

Reason for Proposed Decision

22. This is a matter for information, therefore no decision is required.

Implementation of Decision

23. This is a matter for information, therefore no decision is required.

Appendices

24. None

List of Background Papers

25. Report of the Head of Corporate Strategy and Democratic Services to Policy And 
Resources Cabinet Board (Special) on 21 February 2018 - Neath Port Talbot 
County Borough Council Corporate Communications and Community Relations 
Strategy

26. Report of the Head of Corporate Strategy and Democratic Services to Council on 
the 28th February 2018. Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Corporate 
Communications and Community Relations Strategy

Tudalen66

https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=7928
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=7928
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=7928
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=7928
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=7502
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=7502
https://democracy.npt.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=7502


Officer Contact

27. Caryn Furlow-Harris, Strategic Manager, Policy and Democratic Services Tel: 
01639 763242 e-mail c.furlow@npt.gov.uk 

28. Anita James, Corporate Content & Engagement Manager Tel: 01639 763842 0r 
e-mail a.james6@npt.gov.uk 

29. Kirsty Williams, Corporate Engagement & Communications Officer Tel 01639 
686587 or e-mail: k.williams10@npt.gov.uk 

Tudalen67

mailto:c.furlow@npt.gov.uk
mailto:a.james6@npt.gov.uk
mailto:k.williams10@npt.gov.uk


Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag


	Agenda
	3 Blaenraglen Waith 2018-19
	4 Ymgynghoriad ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 2020/21
	5 Cynllyn Cydraddoldeb Strategol Drafft 2020-2024 - Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol
	Appendix1 - Draft Equality Objectives  Actions
	Appendix 2 - Integrated_Impact_Assessment

	6 Lansiad Panel y Dinasyddion

